
 
 

 
 

CALL-IN SUB COMMITTEE  
 

THURSDAY 27 OCTOBER 2005 
7.30 PM  

 
SUB-COMMITTEE AGENDA (SCRUTINY) 

 
COMMITTEE ROOM 6        

HARROW CIVIC CENTRE 
 
 

 
  MEMBERSHIP    (Quorum 3)  
 
    
 
  Chair: 

 
Councillor Mitzi Green 

 
Councillors: 

 
Gate 
Thammaiah 
 

Jean Lammiman (VC) 
Osborn 
 

  

 
 

Reserve Members: 
 

1. Blann 
2. Ann Groves 
3. Mrs R Shah  
 

1. Seymour 
2. Versallion 
3. Romain 
 

  

 
Issued by the Legal Services Section, 

Legal Services Department  
 
Contact:  Michelle Fernandes, Committee Administrator 
Tel:  020 8424 1542    E-mail:  michelle.fernandes@harrow.gov.uk 

 
NOTE FOR THOSE ATTENDING THE MEETING: 

IF YOU WISH TO DISPOSE OF THIS AGENDA, PLEASE LEAVE IT BEHIND AFTER THE MEETING.  
IT WILL BE COLLECTED FOR RECYCLING. 



 

 

 
  HARROW COUNCIL 

 
CALL-IN SUB COMMITTEE  
 
THURSDAY 27 OCTOBER 2005 
 

 
 

  Protocol for the Operation of the Call-in Sub-Committee  (Pages 1 - 2) 
 

  Protocol for Handling Portfolio Holder Decisions Referred Back by the 
Call-in Sub-Committee  (Pages 3 - 4) 
 

  AGENDA - PART I   
 

1. Attendance by Reserve Members:    
 To note the attendance at this meeting of any duly appointed Reserve 

Members. 
 
Reserve Members may attend meetings:- 
 
(i) to take the place of an ordinary Member for whom they are a reserve; 
(ii) where the ordinary Member will be absent for the whole of the 

meeting; and  
(iii) after notifying the Chair at the start of the meeting. 
 

2. Declarations of Interest:    
 To receive declarations of personal or prejudicial interests, arising from 

business to be transacted at this meeting, from all Members present. 
 

3. Arrangement of Agenda:    
 To consider whether any of the items listed on the agenda should be 

considered with the press and public excluded on the grounds that it is 
thought likely, in view of the nature of the business to be transacted, that 
there would be disclosure of confidential information in breach of an 
obligation of confidence or of exempt information as defined in the Local 
Government (Access to Information) Act 1985. 
 

4. Minutes:    
 That the minutes of the meeting held on 23 May 2005, having been 

circulated, be taken as read and signed as a correct record. 
 

 5. Call-in of Environment and Transport Portfolio Holder Decision: 
Proposed Extension of Stanmore Controlled Parking Zone - Objections 
and Re-Consultation Results including Howberry Road and Howberry 
Close:   

 
Enc.  (a) Notice Invoking the Call-in   (Pages 5 - 6)   

 
Enc.  (b) Record of the Decision of the Environment and Transport Portfolio 

Holder   (Pages 7 - 8)   
 

Enc.  (c) Documentation sent to the Environment and Transport Portfolio Holder  
(Pages 9 - 142)   

 



 

 

  [Note: the report has been circulated to Members and Reserve Members of 
the Sub-Committee and call-in signatories only. Hard copies are available on 
request from the administrator, and are also available in the Group Offices. 
The report can also be downloaded from the website (www.harrow.gov.uk) by 
following the link: ‘Council and Democracy’].   
 

7. Any Other Business:    
 Which the Chair has decided is urgent and cannot otherwise be dealt with. 

 
  AGENDA - PART II - NIL   

 
  Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985:  In accordance with 

the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985, this meeting is being 
called with less than 5 clear working days’ notice by virtue of the special 
circumstances and grounds for urgency stated below:- 
  
Special Circumstances/Grounds for Urgency:  Under Overview and Scrutiny 
Procedure Rule 22.6, a meeting of the Call-in Sub-Committee must be held 
within 7 clear working days of the receipt of a request for call-in.  This 
meeting therefore had to be arranged at short notice and it was not possible 
for the agenda to be published 5 clear working days prior to the meeting.   
 



This page is intentionally left blank



C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\4\8\7\AI00024784\callinprotocolforoperation0.doc 

 PROTOCOL FOR THE OPERATION OF THE CALL-IN SUB-COMMITTEE 
 
 
1. Call-in is the process whereby a decision of the Executive, Portfolio Holder or Officer (where the 

latter is taking a Key Decision) taken but not implemented, may be examined by the Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee prior to implementation.  The Overview and Scrutiny Committee has 
established the Call-in Sub-Committee to carry out this role.  Overview and Scrutiny Procedure 
Rule 22 sets out the rules governing the call-in process. 

 
 The process for call-in 
 
2. Any six of the Members of the Council and the co-opted members on the Lifelong Learning 

Scrutiny Sub-Committee can call in a decision of the Executive which has been taken but not 
implemented.  (NB: Co-opted members of the Lifelong Learning Scrutiny Sub-Committee may 
only sign up to requests to call in decisions relating to education matters).  Only decisions 
relating to Executive functions, whether delegated or not, may be called in. 

 
3. Decisions of the Executive will not be implemented for 5 clear working days following the 

publication of the decision and a decision can only be called in within this period (this does not 
apply to urgent decisions - Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rule 23 refers).  The notice of the 
decision will state the date on which the decisions may be implemented if not called in. 

 
4. Call-in must be by notification to the Borough Solicitor in writing or by fax, signed by all six 

Members/co-opted members requesting the call-in.  A request for call-in by e-mail will require a 
separate e-mail from each of the six Members/co-opted members concerned.  A proforma of a 
notice for call-in has been circulated for the use of Members and co-opted members. 

 
5. In accordance with Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rule 22.5, a notice by Members/co-opted 

members to invoke the call-in procedure must state at least one of the following grounds in 
support of the request for a call-in of the decision:- 

 
(a) inadequate consultation with stakeholders prior to the decision; 
(b) the absence of adequate evidence on which to base a decision; 
(c) the decision is contrary to the policy framework, or contrary to, or not wholly in 

accordance with the budget framework; 
(d) the action is not proportionate to the desired outcome; 
(e) a potential human rights challenge; 
(f) insufficient consideration of legal and financial advice. 
 
The call-in notice should also provide details of the evidence to support the grounds for call-in. 
 

6. Requests for call-in which, on investigation by the Borough Solicitor, are found to have been 
made without the support of the required number of Members or co-opted Members, or without 
specifying one of the grounds set out under Overview and Scrutiny Committee Rule 22.5, will 
not be referred to the Call-in Sub-Committee. 

 
 Referral to the Call-in Sub-Committee 
 
7. Once a valid notice invoking the call-in procedure has been received, a meeting of the Call-in 

Sub-Committee will be arranged, in consultation with the Chair and Nominated Member(s) of the 
Sub-Committee, within seven clear working days of the receipt of the request for call-in.  The 
other Members of the Sub-Committee will be notified of the need for a meeting, and the date 
thereof, at the earliest possible opportunity. 

 
8. The papers to be considered by the Call-in Sub-Committee will be all those considered by the 

decision-taker when the decision was taken, the record of the decision and the written details of 
the call-in request.  Where information material to the decision is known to officers and was not 
available to the decision taker, either because it only became known after the date of the 
decision or otherwise, such information should be drawn to the attention of Members of the Call-
in Sub-Committee. 

 

Agenda Annex
Pages 1 to 2

1



C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\4\8\7\AI00024784\callinprotocolforoperation0.doc 

9. The papers will be sent to all Members and Reserve Members of the Sub-Committee, the 
Executive, the relevant Chief Officer, and all those who had signed up to the call-in.  Relevant 
Ward Councillors will also be notified of the meeting if the issue in question is specific to a 
particular Ward or Wards.  The Chair of the Sub-Committee may also request that the papers be 
sent to any other persons that he/she feels is appropriate. 

 
10. Members sitting on the Call-in Sub-Committee should bring to the meeting an open mind and an 

impartial approach.  Where a Member of the Sub-Committee is one of the Members calling in 
the decision, that Member should send a Reserve Member to the meeting of the Sub-Committee 
which considers the call-in, unless (for example because they are a co-opted member) they do 
not have a nominated Reserve. 

 
11. The relevant Portfolio Holder and the relevant Chief Officer (or his/her representative) will be 

invited to attend the meeting to explain the reasons for the decision and to clarify any aspects 
associated with the issue in question. 

 
12. The Members initiating the call-in will be invited to nominate one of their number or another 

Member who is not a Member of the Call-in Sub-Committee to advocate on their behalf and on 
behalf of others who may oppose the decision.  Such a Member will be entitled to speak at the 
Call-in Sub-Committee on an equal footing with the Portfolio Holder and the relevant Chief 
Officer (or his/her representative). 

 
13. The Chair of the Call-in Sub-Committee, in consultation with the meeting, may invite any other 

persons (for example, a legal adviser or other appropriate officer) to assist during the meeting as 
he/she feels appropriate. 

 
14. The Chair of the Call-in Sub-Committee, in consultation with the meeting, will determine how the 

call-in will be dealt with.  The rules on deputations and petitions shall apply as they apply to the 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee. 

 
15. Having considered the call-in, the Sub-Committee may come to one of the following 

conclusions:- 
 

(i) that the grounds for the call-in be upheld and  
 

(a) in the event that it is upheld that the decision is contrary to the policy framework, 
or contrary to, or not wholly in accordance with the budget framework, the 
decision be referred to the Council.  In such a case the Call-in Sub-Committee 
must set out the nature of its concerns for Council.  The nature of such concerns 
would usually be expected to be significant and well proven in the context of the 
decision under consideration; or 

 
(b) the decision be referred back to the decision taker for reconsideration.  In such a 

case the Call-in Sub-Committee must set out the nature of its concerns for the 
decision taker.  The nature of such concerns need only be sufficient to indicate 
that reconsideration is warranted, and need not necessarily indicate that the Sub-
Committee believes the decision should be reversed, unless so stated by the 
Sub-Committee. 

 
(ii) that the grounds for the call-in be rejected and the decision be implemented.  
 

2



PROTOCOL FOR HANDLING PORTFOLIO HOLDER DECISIONS REFERRED BACK BY 
THE CALL-IN SUB-COMMITTEE 
 
 
 
(1) This protocol applies to decisions made by individual Portfolio Holders (whether or not 

on the recommendation of an Advisory Panel) which are (a) the subject of call-in by the 
Call-in Sub-Committee of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee and (b) the Call-in Sub-
Committee refers the decision back to the Portfolio Holder for reconsideration under 
Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rule No 22.8(c). 

 
(2) In every case where the circumstances in the preceding paragraph arise, a local 

protocol shall apply to the effect that the Call-in Sub-Committee shall refer the matter to 
the Leader of the Council who will determine whether the matter should be referred to 
the Cabinet or to the Portfolio Holder. 

 
 
Agreed by Cabinet, 17/12/02. 

Agenda Annex
Pages 3 to 4

3



4

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 5a
Pages 5 to 6

5



6

This page is intentionally left blank



Record of Environment and Transport Portfolio Holder’s 
Decision Upon Receipt of Recommendation from the Traffic and 

Road Safety Advisory Panel meeting held on  
21 September 2005 

 
Ref:  PHD   054/05 

 
Subject: 
 

Proposed Extension of Stanmore Controlled Parking Zone 
– Objections and Re-Consultation Results including 
Howberry Road and Howberry Close  
 
(The report sought authority to extend the Controlled Parking 
Zone.) 

Date of Decision: 
 
 

13 October 2005 

Declaration of interest 
(if any): 
 

None 

Key decision 
(Yes/No?): 
 

No 

Urgent/Non Urgent 
decision?: 
 

Non Urgent 

Public/Exempt?: 
 

Part I 

Options considered: 
 

As set out in Section 2.2 of the published officer’s report on the 
TARSAP agenda for 21 September 2005. 
 

Any other option 
identified by the 
Portfolio Holder: 
 

None 

Decision: 
 

(1) That the objections for the traffic orders for alterations and 
extension of the Stanmore Controlled Parking Zone (Zone B 
and Zone H) be set aside unless otherwise indicated for 
reasons given at Appendix C to the published officer report;  
 
(2) that Chalbury Avenue (part), Craigwell Close (part), Eaton 
Close, Elizabeth Gardens, Malcolm Court, Laurimel Close and 
London Road (part) be excluded from the scheme;  
 
(3) that officers be authorised to implement the extension to 
Stanmore CPZ Zone B and Zone H as shown at Appendix D to 

Agenda Item 5b
Pages 7 to 8

7



the report and detailed at Appendix E under the Road Traffic 
Regulation Act 1984;  
 
(4) that officers be authorised to take all necessary steps under 
the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984 to advertise the traffic 
orders, the details of which be delegated to officers, and 
implement a Controlled Parking Zone incorporating a residents’ 
parking scheme in Howberry Road between Cloyster Wood and 
Wychwood Avenue including Howberry Close, as shown at 
Appendix J to the report, to operate Monday to Friday 2pm – 
3pm subject to consideration of objections (if any), the 
statement of reasons to be ‘to control parking and to improve 
residential amenity;  
 
(5) that officers be authorised to investigate congestion and 
road safety problems at the northern end of Green Lane;  
 
(6) that officers be authorised to investigate further the parking 
problems outside the shops on Canon’s Corner and report back 
to the Panel;  
 
(7) that the objectors and head petitioners be informed 
accordingly. 
 

Reasons for decision: 
 

To gain agreement for implementation of parking controls to 
address the Council’s stated priority of enhancing the 
environment and encourage more sustainable transport activity. 

 
Is the decision subject to call-in? YES/NO 
 
 YES - The call-in period expires on 24 October 2005 (5.00pm) 
   The decision can be implemented on 25 October 2005 if not 
called in. 
 
 NO - The decision is Urgent and can be implemented now. 
 
 
 CALL-IN - this is the process whereby a decision taken by the Executive or a 

Portfolio Holder may be examined by the Overview and Scrutiny Committee.  
The Overview and Scrutiny Committee may recommend that the Executive 
reconsider the decision. 

 
 For further information, please contact Daksha Ghelani on 020 8424 1881 or 

by e-mail: daksha.ghelani@harrow.gov.uk 
 
 
 

8



 

Per Guidance Notes/Templates/Record of PH Decision Following Recommendation from AP or CF 

Ref: PHD  
 

Record of Environment and Transport Portfolio Holder’s Decision Upon 
Receipt of Recommendation from the Traffic and Road Safety Advisory Panel 

meeting held on 21 September 2005 
 

Subject: 
 

Proposed Extension if Stanmore Controlled Parking Zone – Objections and 
Re-Consultation Results including Howberry Road and Howberry Close 

Status: 
 

Part I 

Date of Decision: 
 
 

 
 

Declaration of 
interest by Portfolio 
Holder (if any): 

 

Key decision 
(Yes/No?): 

NO 

Reasons for 
Urgency:  

None 

Options considered 
by Advisory Panel: 

See Section 2.2 of the report at Agenda Item 8d) on the TARSAP agenda 
for 21 September 2005 

Additional Options 
considered/identifie
d by Portfolio 
Holder: 

 

Decision: 
 

The Portfolio Holder: 
*a) deferred decision for further information and or consultation; 
*b) agreed with the recommendations of the above named Panel which 
were as follows; 
*c) disagreed with the recommendations of the above named Panel which 
were as follows; 
(*please delete as appropriate) 

Agenda Item 5c
Pages 9 to 142

9



 

Per Guidance Notes/Templates/Record of PH Decision Following Recommendation from AP or CF 

 That (1)  the objections to the traffic orders for alterations and extension of the 
Stanmore Controlled Parking Zones (Zone B and Zone H) be set aside unless 
otherwise indicated for reasons given at Appendix C to the report; 
 
(2)  Charlbury Avenue (part), Craigwell Close (part), Eaton Close, Elizabeth 
Gardens, Malcolm Court, Laurimel Close and London Road (part) be excluded 
from the scheme; 
 
(3)  officers be authorised to implement the extension to Stanmore CPZ  Zone B 
and Zone H as shown at Appendix D to the report and detailed at Appendix E 
under the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984; 
 
(4)  officers be authorised to take all necessary steps under the Road Traffic 
Regulation Act 1984 to advertise the traffic orders, the details of which be 
delegated to officers, and implement a Controlled Parking Zone incorporating a 
residents’ parking scheme in Howberry Road between Cloyster Wood and 
Wychwood Avenue including Howberry Close, as shown at Appendix J to the 
report, to operate Monday to Friday 2pm – 3pm subject to consideration of 
objections (if any), the statement of reasons to be ‘to control parking an to improve 
residential amenity’; 
 
(5)  officers be authorised to investigate congestion and road safety problems at 
the northern end of Green Lane;  
 
(6)  officers be authorised to investigate further the parking problems outside the 
shops on Canon’s Corner, and report back to the Panel; 
 
(7)  the objectors and head petitioners be informed accordingly. 
 

Reasons for 
decision: 
 

To gain agreement for implementation of parking controls to address the 
Council’s stated priority of enhancing the environment and encourage more 
sustainable transport activity 

Additional Reasons 
for decision 
identified by 
Portfolio Holder (if 
any): 

 

 
 
Signature: 

 
…………………………………………………………………………………. 

 Portfolio Holder 
 

 
Name: 

 
…………………………………………………………………………………. 

 (please print) 
 
Date: 

 

 
Note: White sections of the form should be completed by the initiating department prior to receipt by the Portfolio 
Holder. The Portfolio Holder is requested to complete the grey sections of the form. 
 
FOR RETURN TO NICK WALE, COMMITTEE SERVICES, ROOM 143, EXTENSION 2323 
NOTE TO PORTFOLIO HOLDER: Please note that once you have taken this decision the Authority is required, in 
accordance with the decision of Extraordinary Council at its meeting held on 28 May 2002 (Minute 27) to publish a 
record of your decision within two clear working days. In order to facilitate this, it is important that you return this 
document as soon as possible. Thank-you for your co-operation. 

10



Meeting: Traffic and Road Safety Advisory Panel 

Date: 21 September 2005 

Subject: Proposed Extension of Stanmore Controlled 
Parking Zone – Objections and Re-consultation 
Results Including Howberry Road and Howberry 
Close 

Responsible Officer:  Andrew Trehern, Director of Area Services, Urban 
Living 

Contact Officer:  Steve Swain, Transport Manager 
Portfolio Holder:  Environment and Transport 
Key Decision:   No 
Status:    Public

Section 1: Summary

This report considers the results of re-consultations carried out and objections to 
the advertised traffic orders. 

Decision Required 

Recommendations (for decision by the Environment and Transport Portfolio 
Holder) 

i) that the objections to the traffic orders for alterations and extension  of 
 the Stanmore Controlled Parking Zones (Zone B and Zone H) be set 
 aside unless otherwise indicated for reasons given at Appendix C; 
ii)  that Charlbury Avenue (part), Craigweil Close (part), Eaton Close, 
 Elizabeth Gardens, Malcolm Court, Laurimel Close and London Road 
 (part) be excluded from the scheme; 
iii) that officers be authorised to implement the extension to Stanmore CPZ  
 Zone  B and Zone H as shown at Appendix D and detailed at Appendix E 
 under the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984; 
iv) that officers be authorised to take all  necessary steps under the Road 
 Traffic Regulation Act 1984  to advertise the traffic orders, the details of 

Agenda Item 8d
Pages 49 to 176

4911



 which be delegated to officers and implement a Controlled Parking Zone 
 incorporating a residents’ parking scheme in Howberry Road between 
 Cloyster Wood and Wychwood Avenue including Howberry Close as 
 shown at Appendix J to operate Monday to Friday 2pm – 3pm 
 subject to consideration  of objections (if any), the statement of reasons to 
 be ‘to control parking and to improve residential amenity” and 
v) inform the objectors and head petitioners accordingly.

Reason for report 

To gain agreement for implementation of parking controls to address the Council’s 
stated priority of enhancing the environment and encourage more sustainable 
transport activity. 

Benefits 

• Responding to residents’ requests. 

• CPZs incorporating residents’ parking schemes can improve: 

• Safety 

• Access 

• Residential amenity 

• CPZs can assist management of parking in town centre to ensure more short 
stay shopper/visitor spaces are available. 

Cost of Proposals  

The estimated cost of implementation of the Stanmore CPZ is £55,000 and that of 
Howberry Road area is £10,000 for the CPZ and £8,000 for the yellow line waiting 
restrictions scheme. Transport for London has contributed £25,000 towards the cost 
of Stanmore CPZ review.  The balance can be funded from the 2005/06 allocated 
CPZs capital budget. 

Risks

• Line painting is weather dependent and the contractor may not be able to keep to 
programme during winter months. 

• A residents’ parking scheme in the Howberry Road area may not be universally 
acceptable. 

• A yellow line waiting restrictions scheme in the Howberry Road area is likely to 
seriously disadvantage some residents who rely on on-street spaces for their 
parking needs. 

• Parking is likely to be displaced to the edge of the extended zones.  

5012



Implications if recommendations rejected 

Possible dissatisfaction with the outcome of the consultation from residents in some 
areas, under-expenditure of allocated funding, possible knock on effect on the 
Controlled Parking Zones programme.   

Section 2: Report 

2.1  Brief History

2.1.2 The Portfolio Holder for Environment and Transport’s decision following 
the Traffic and Road Safety Advisory Panel’s recommendation of 1 
December 2004 was Called-in and reviewed by the Call-in Sub-Committee 
at its meeting of 11 January 2005.  The Sub-Committee referred back the 
decision dealing with Howberry Road and Howberry Close to the Portfolio 
Holder for re-consideration whilst agreeing that the remainder of the 
decision be implemented. 

2.1.3 Subsequent to the Portfolio Holder’s re-consideration, the Leader of the 
Council decided that the residents of Howberry Road between Cloyster 
Wood and Wychwood Avenue including Howberry Close be re-consulted 
independently of the Stanmore CPZ statutory consultation on whether 
they would prefer a Controlled Parking Zone incorporating a residents’ 
parking scheme or yellow line waiting restrictions, operating Monday to 
Friday, 2pm to 3pm in each case.  

2.1.4 The residents of Howberry Road between Cloyster Wood and Wychwood 
Avenue including Howberry Close have been re-consulted in accordance 
with the above.  (See 2.3) 

2.1.5 Following the decision to proceed with statutory consultation and re-
consultation in parallel in Eaton Close, Laburnum Court, Merryfield 
Gardens, Marsh Lane (between Malcolm Court and Elizabeth Gardens), 
Charlbury Avenue, Craigweil Close, Malcolm Court, Elizabeth Gardens, 
London Road and Snaresbrook Drive, the traffic orders were advertised in 
June 2005.  Re-consultation was also carried out carried out in June and 
August 2005. The advertised scheme is shown at Appendix A. 

2.1.6 Three petitions,  one letter enclosing three letters from other residents and 
7 further letters of objection to the advertised traffic orders have been 
received.  An extract from each petition is at Appendix B together with the 
letters of objection.  The full petitions have been placed in the Members’ 
Library.

5113



2.1.7 Appendix C contains a summary of the objections and comments made by 
the objectors and petitioners together with officers’ response.  

2.1.8 Appendix D shows the amended plan of the proposal that is considered to 
be acceptable taking into account the objections that have been received.  
Appendix E shows the amendments for order making purposes. 

2.2 Options considered 

See consultation 

2.3 Consultation  

2.3.1 Re-consultation was carried out in parallel with statutory consultation in 
June/July for a period of 3 weeks.   Due to an error in the consultation 
document for London Road and Snaresbrook Drive a further consultation 
was carried out in these roads in August for a 3 week period.  The 
consultation documents are shown at Appendix F. 

2.3.2 Response rates for the re-consultation in London Road and Snaresbrook 
Drive together is 56% and that of the remainder combined is 39% which 
are considered good.  A detailed analysis of the results on a street by 
street basis is shown at Appendix G The responses have been placed in 
the Members’ Library.   

2.3.3 The results show that there is no support for a scheme in Eaton Close, 
Elizabeth Gardens, Malcolm Court, Charlbury Avenue (part), Craigweil 
Close (part)  and London Road.  It is therefore recommended that these 
roads be dropped from the proposed extension of the CPZ. 

2.3.4 Re-consultation in the Howberry Road area was carried out in April/May 
2005.  A total of 65 leaflets were delivered to Howberry Road between 
Cloyster Wood and Wychwood Avenue and Howberry Close and 37 
responses have been received.  This represents a 57% response rate 
which is considered very good.  The consultation document is shown at 
Appendix H.  A summary of the consultation results is shown below and a 
detailed analysis of the results on a street by street basis is shown at 
Appendix I.  The responses have been placed in the Members’ Library.   

In favour of a residents’ parking scheme    13 (35%) 
In favour of a yellow line waiting restrictions  scheme  19 (51%) 

2.3.5 The results indicate that over a third of the respondents may need on-
street spaces for parking.  They are likely to be seriously disadvantaged 
and dissatisfied with a yellow line scheme.  If a yellow line scheme is 
introduced, residents who require to park in the street will have to move 

5214



their vehicle out of the area of restrictions.  This is a serious disadvantage 
and inconvenience to those residents.  However, there are no serious 
disadvantages of a residents’ parking scheme (it is not compulsory to buy 
permits and the impact of the scheme is identical to a yellow line scheme 
if permits are not purchased).  The consultation has revealed that a 
number of residents would be severely disadvantaged by the 
implementation of a yellow line scheme.  In light of this, it is considered  
that following the majority view is not the appropriate course of action. 

2.3.6 The ward councillors and the Conservative Nominated member were 
informed of the results of the consultation and officers’ views in 
accordance with the above. The Conservative Nominated member has 
advised that he has consulted the ward councillors together with Canons 
Park Residents’ Association (CAPRA) and visited the area.   In his view it 
is clear that all the properties involved either have off-street parking 
facilities or the ability to provide them.  Therefore the claim that about a 
third of the residents would be inconvenienced by extending the existing 
one hour restriction which applies to roads to the south cannot be justified.  

2.3.7 Thus the Nominated member considers that the majority of 51 % for 
Option B should prevail. In addition, the member concurs with the view of 
CAPRA that the provision of residents’ parking spaces in Howberry Close 
could make it difficult for large vehicles, such as refuse lorries, to gain 
access.  CAPRA contend that the present scheme south of the proposed 
zone is working well and is meeting its objectives and has actually won 
over many of its critics when first proposed.   The Nominated member also 
advises that it would be sound common-sense to avoid having differing 
schemes adjacent to each other. 

2.3.8 Officers advise that whist the residents may all have off- street parking, it 
is difficult to reconcile the 35% who have opted for a residents’ parking 
scheme with the views of CAPRA.  When the scheme south of the 
proposed area was introduced, there were a number of complaints some 
of which persisted for several months.  Some of the residents who do not 
have sufficient off-street parking may be using Howberry Road or 
Howberry Close.  A yellow line scheme in the proposed area is likely to 
force some to seek parking immediately outside the zone resulting in 
complaints from those areas. 

2.3.9 Though the proposed residents parking scheme would operate differently, 
it would have the same controlled hours as the existing yellow line 
scheme.  Therefore, the yellow lines would not create confusion. The 
resident’s spaces, which also operate the same time as the yellow lines 
would each have a “Permit holders only” sign.  Therefore, confusion would 
not be a major issue.  As the scheme would deter commuter parking, 
obstructive parking would also be less likely. 

5315



2.3.10 On balance a residents’ parking scheme would be less restrictive for the 
residents than a yellow line only scheme and it is recommended that the 
majority view is not implemented and a residents’ parking scheme be 
introduced instead subject to statutory consultation and consideration of 
objections (if any).   The proposed area of the CPZ is shown a at 
Appendix J.  

2.4 Financial Implications 

2.4.1 The estimated cost of implementation of the Stanmore CPZ is £55,000 
and that of Howberry Road area is £10,000 for the CPZ and £8,000 for the 
yellow line waiting restrictions scheme. Transport for London has 
contributed £25,000 towards the cost of Stanmore CPZ review.  The 
balance can be funded from the 2005/06 allocated CPZs capital budget.

2.5 Legal Implications 

2.5.1 Controlled parking zones and associated waiting and loading restrictions 
can be implemented under the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984. 

2.6 Equalities Impact 

Not applicable 

Section 3: Supporting Information/ Background Documents

Appendices: 

Appendix A: Plans of advertised scheme 
Appendix B: Petitions and letters of objections 
Appendix C: Summary of objections and officers comments 
Appendix D: Amended plans of the proposals 
Appendix E: Amendments for order making purposes 
Appendix F:  Zones B & H re-consultation documents 
Appendix G Summary of responses from Zones B & H re-consultation 
Appendix H Howberry Road Area re-consultation document  
Appendix I  Summary of responses from Howberry Road Area re-consultation 
Appendix J Plan of proposed CPZ for Howberry Road Area 

Background Documents:  
Stanmore CPZ – Review of Existing CPZs and possible extension – Consultation 
Report, December 2004 (Agenda Item 6); 
Record of Environment and Transport Portfolio Holder’s Decision Ref: PHD 
069/04 Stanmore CPZ – Consultation Results, dated 20 December 2004; 

5416



Record of the Leader’s Decision Ref: PHD 077/04 and PHD 077/04(a) Call-in 
Sub-Committee - Consultation Results dated 7 February 2005 

5517



56

This page is intentionally left blank

18



This appendix consists of an ordnance survey map which is not 
available electronically. 

APPENDIX A

5719



58

This page is intentionally left blank

20



This appendix consists of an ordnance survey map which is not 
available electronically. 

5921



This appendix consists of an ordnance survey map which is not 
available electronically. 

6022



This appendix consists of an ordnance survey map which is not 
available electronically. 

6123



This appendix consists of an ordnance survey map which is not 
available electronically. 

6224



This appendix consists of an ordnance survey map which is not 
available electronically. 

6325



This appendix consists of an ordnance survey map which is not 
available electronically. 

6426



This appendix consists of an ordnance survey map which is not 
available electronically. 

6527



This appendix consists of an ordnance survey map which is not 
available electronically. 

6628



This appendix consists of an ordnance survey map which is not 
available electronically. 

6729



68

This page is intentionally left blank

30



6931



7032



7133



7234



7335



7436



7537



7638



7739



7840



7941



8042



8143



8244



8345



8446



8547



8648



8749



8850



8951



9052



9153



9254



9355



9456



9557



9658



9759



9860



9961



100

This page is intentionally left blank

62



APPENDIX C

Source Summary of 
Objections/Comments 

Officers Response 

Petitions

Petition from 
Canons
Corner
containing 14 
signatures  
representing 
7 businesses 
and 5 
residential 
properties  

Petition in the 
form of a 
letter signed 
by the 9 
businesses in 
Canons
Corner.

The petitioners explain 
that “if Canons Corner is 
not included in the 
proposed parking 
restrictions in Stanmore, 
there will be major 
repercussions for both 
the residents and shops 
in this area."  The 
petitioners are requesting 
that Canons Corner be 
included in the proposal 
“by making Canons 
Corner a Pay and 
Display and Residents 
Parking area only 
between the hours of 
8.30am and 6.30pm.” 

The “parade of shops 
has been given little 
forethought”.  Trade “will 
certainly be lost”. 

“We propose ‘Pay and 
Display’ be put in place in 
front of the shops and in 
Court Drive and 
Snaresbrook Drive.” 

Canons Corner was not included in the 
proposals as the respondents  to the 
consultation were two to one against 
parking controls.  The residents of 
Court Drive and The Spinney were also 
against a scheme and they too have 
been excluded from the proposed 
extension of the zone.  Re-consultation 
has shown that London Road 
respondents  are also against parking 
controls.   This leaves only one road 
(Snaresbrook Drive) in favour of 
inclusion in the Stanmore station area 
zone (zone H).   Consequently, the 
impact of the extension of the zone on 
Canons Corner would be unlikely to be 
significant.   

Provision of  “pay and 
display”/residents’ parking in front of 
the shops would not resolve the 
parking problems here.  There are 
competing demands for parking from 
shoppers, businesses, residents and 
visitors.  There is room for only 6 
parking spaces in front of the shops 
and this would not be adequate to meet 
demand.  

Consultation carried out in September 
2004 included proposals for shared use 
“pay and display”/business parking in 
Canons Corner and shared use “pay 
and display”/residents/business parking 
in Court Drive.  The majority of 
respondents from both these roads did 
not support the scheme.  Only one 
trader responded to the consultation.  
Therefore, these roads together with 
The Spinney were dropped from the 

10163



Petition from 
Green Lane 
Area

The petitions 
from some 
residents of 
Green Lane, 
Woodside 
Close,
Benhale 
Close and 
Culverlands

The proposed “no 
parking zone along The 
Spinney, Snaresbrook 
Drive and Court Drive at 
certain times of the day” 
will affect the businesses 
as “8 a.m. to 6 p.m. are 
shopping hours”. 

The heading of the 
petition is in the form of a 
question rather than a 
request for parking 
controls.  It reads as 
follows: “THE QUESTION IS 

DO YOU WANT PARKING 

CONTROL BETWEEN 10
am. to 11 am.   3 pm. to 
4 pm.  MONDAY TO 

FRIDAY. PLEASE ANSWER 

YES OR NO.”  The petition 
contains 48 signatures 
answering “yes” 

proposed extension.   As the Court 
Drive respondents are against parking 
controls, it would not be possible to 
impose a scheme as suggested. 

There is only room for 6 cars outside 
the shops for the 20 or so business and 
residential frontages.   Considering 
about half of these are residential, 
shared use “pay and display” and 
residents’ parking would not make a 
significant difference here.   It would 
also be in isolation from the proposed 
extension of Stanmore CPZ.  London  
Road, The Spinney and Court Drive will 
not be included in the scheme.  Given  
the zone will be some distance from the 
parade of shops and that it operates for 
two hours per day, Monday to 
Saturday,  the impact would be 
minimal.   Residents of Canons Corner 
and shoppers would be able to 
continue to park (as they do now) in 
London Road, Court Drive and The 
Spinney, all of which would be outside 
the proposed CPZ. 

It is therefore recommended that the 
objections be set aside and Canons 
Corner be considered for parking 
controls as part of a future review of 
the scheme. 

The Green Lane respondents to the 
September 2004 were 20 for and 21 
against.  There are three culs-de-sac in 
Green Lane (Woodside Close, Ben 
Hale Close and Culverlands Close).  All 
of these taken together show that there 
are 29 responses in favour and 26 
against. Two petitions from Green Lane 
against parking controls were also 
received.  In view of this Green Lane 
and associated roads were not 
included in the proposed extension of 
the CPZ.  

10264



Close representing 47 
properties out of 145.   

The head petitioner in his 
covering letter explains 
that the consultation was 
not clear “as many 
residents thought that 
parking meters and traffic 
wardens would be 
outside of their houses if 
parking controls were 
brought in.”   

“If the problem is the 
cottages at the top of 
Green Lane then these 
could be excluded from 
the scheme and controls 
would be from the bottom 
of Green Lane up to 
Culverlands Close.” 

“There is a major 
accident waiting to 
happen as traffic is 
mounting the pavement 
in order to drive up 
Green Lane.”  

This is not what was explained in the  
consultation document which provided 
information about how a residents’ 
parking scheme would work.  That 
normally means residents’ parking 
spaces and yellow line waiting 
restrictions in residential streets.  
Parking controls would require 
enforcement, without which they would 
come into disrepute.   

There are 51 properties north of 
Culverlands Close, most of them 
without off-street parking.  Parking  
controls would displace parking to this 
part of the road and would be 
unacceptable to those residents.   

There have been no reported personal 
injury accidents in the last three years 
(to December 2004) in Green Lane.  A 
residents’ parking scheme would 
comprise residents spaces in Green 
Lane which are likely to be occupied at 
times by residents or their visitors.  
Such parking would similarly create 
access difficulties which could lead to 
some drivers mounting the footway.   
To achieve unhindered two way traffic 
parking would need to be banned on 
both sides of the road for most of the 
day.   This is unlikely to be acceptable 
to the majority of the residents. Driving 
along the footway is an offence that the 
police have powers to deal with and 
this would be referred to them.   

It is recommended that the objection 
be set aside. 

10365



Resident of 
Stanmore Hill 

Resident of 
Sandymount 
Avenue

Proposed double yellow 
lines in Stanmore Hill will 
displace parking into  
Hilltop Way.  Vehicles will 
park in Hilltop Way 
“blocking my drives and 
Garage”.  I request that 
parking controls be 
extended “up to my  
garage entrance”. 

If “provisions for Event 
Days are likely to be 
required, then it is clearly 
good sense and “Best 
Value” to incorporate 
them with the current 
proposals, Traffic Order-
making procedures and 
physical works.” 

It would be a “waste of 
public resources to 
consider the impact of 
Wembley Stadium (Event 
Days) as a separate 
issue.”  When “the former 
Wembley Stadium was in 
operation (pre-Oct 2000), 
the Stanmore Station 
area suffered significant 
parking problems on 
Major Event Days.   A 
“major CPZ is to be 

Double yellow line waiting restrictions 
are proposed to prevent obstructive 
parking at junctions and to improve 
visibility.  The proposal was 
substantially modified in response to 
the consultation.  Short sections of 
double yellow line waiting restrictions 
are proposed at four junctions only (see 
Appendix D).   At Hilltop Way, they 
would be only 10 metres long.  The 
objector’s garage is about 40 metres
away from the junction.  Extending the 
proposal to cover this distance would 
unduly prohibit parking in a section 
which would not normally be 
problematic.  Obstructive parking 
across driveways is an offence that 
under the new regulations the Council 
has powers to deal with and action will 
be taken against offenders.  It is 
recommended that the objection be 
set aside.

Combining the Wembley Stadium 
Event Days scheme with the 
consultation carried out recently would 
have been confusing. In the existing 
zone the consultation sought views on 
the adequacy of the hours and days of 
restrictions .  Elsewhere the residents 
were asked whether they wanted to be 
included in the zone.   These questions 
generated many complaints about the 
complexity of the issues and confusion 
about what was being proposed 
culminating in 19 petitions against, 
which is the very information the 
consultation was designed to seek out.   
Adding a further dimension (Event 
Days) would have created even more 
confusion and complaints. 

The impact of the stadium in Harrow 
would not be the same as the areas 
around the stadium itself.   Not all 
events at Wembley affected Harrow 

10466



completed in Brent in 
2005 covering a huge 
radius around the 
Stadium.”  “The Stadium 
is programmed to be 
operational in 2005/06, 
and a major impact on 
the Stanmore area is 
anticipated once it is 
open.  However, the 
current CPZ proposals 
do nothing to address the 
likely problems.”   

“I also object to the waste 
of public resources by 
carrying out these 
parking schemes” 
separately.  “The “current 
CPZ proposals should be 
put on hold, and that the 
Council should carry out 
an urgent consultation on 
Wembley Event day 
parking issues.” 

before the stadium was demolished.  
The majority of respondents around the 
Stanmore station extension area and 
many within the zone wanted a CPZ 
operating shorter times than the 
existing zone.  One of the reasons for 
further consultation was to remind the 
residents about the events at Wembley 
stadium which are likely to generate 
parking problems similar to the pre-
demolition days.  Given the comments 
and opposition to further controls 
arising from this consultation, it is 
doubtful that acceptance for Event 
Days restrictions can be achieved until 
problems associated with them 
manifest themselves.  As the parking 
problems in Stanmore associated with 
the stadium were occasional, unlike the 
area surrounding the stadium itself, it 
would be difficult in this climate to 
convince the local community that 
further controls are necessary or 
justified.  For this reason Event Days 
restrictions have not been included in 
this round of consultations.  

The scheme was last reviewed in 1996. 
The proposal has been generated by 
years of lobbying from members of the 
local community and local councillors to 
address a number of parking problems, 
for example around the college, the 
area between Marsh Lane and Canons 
Park Station and certain streets north 
of the shopping area and station.   

It would not be acceptable to the 
majority of those in favour of the 
extension of the zone to delay the 
scheme until such time that an Event 
Days scheme is agreed.   Though there 
would be a cost saving if the two 
schemes were combined, as most of 
the review work has already been 
completed, the savings would not be 

10567



Zone boundary in 
Sandymount Avenue 
should remain as 
existing. 

“The consultation 
document did not 
specifically ask all 
respondents’ views on 
the physical extension of 
the zone”. 

considerable.   It would not be 
reasonable at this stage to delay the 
current proposals until an Event Days 
scheme can be agreed. 

The majority of the respondents from 
Sandymount Avenue outside the 
existing zone voted to be included (9 
for and 3 against).  Therefore it is 
proposed to extend the scheme to 
include the whole of Sandymount 
Avenue.

A plan showing the possible extension 
of the zones B and H accompanied the 
consultation documents delivered 
outside the existing zones.  A comment 
box was also included where any 
comments including the proposed 
extension boundary of the zone could 
be entered.   The questionnaires also 
included the following two questions 
among others:  “Q3. Are you in favour 
of parking controls being introduced in 
your road” And “Q4. If you answered no 
or don’t know to question 3, if parking 
controls were introduced in the road 
next to yours, would you then want 
your road to be included”.   The 
residents/businesses within the zone 
were informed about the consultation 
outside the zone and its possible 
extension.  Although a plan of the 
proposed extension was not provided a  
similar comment box was provided.    

Residents’ parking scheme areas are 
normally considered only in those 
areas where there is support.  
Therefore, it is for the residents of the 
roads/areas concerned to decide if they 
want the scheme to be extended into  
their roads/areas or not.  It would not 
seem reasonable for residents of one 
road to decide the fate of another road.  
However,  the presentation of this 

10668



The Council’s 
representatives gave 
“misleading information 
biased towards the 
scheme”. “the consultant 
reassured me” that the 
scheme “would not cost 
local residents anything, 
as a budget had been 
secured from TfL.  
However, “Harrow 
residents & taxpayers 
clearly contribute to TfL 
budgets.” 

The proposal reduces 
“the amount of available 
parking space”.              
A ““night-time” parking 
survey to help ascertain 
levels of residents’ 
parking demand” has not 
been carried out. 

There is scope “to 
increase the number of 
residents parking bays”.  

Vehicle speeds will 
increase “by “opening up” 
the carriageway” and this 
“will certainly prejudice 
safety”. 

issue, particularly for those who live 
near the edge of existing zone, in future 
cases will be reviewed. 

This appears to have been about 
making a distinction between Council 
funding and Transport for London 
funding in relation to which the 
consultant had been briefed.  The 
misleading comments are regrettable, 
but unlikely to have reached the wider 
audience to a degree that would affect 
the outcome of the consultation.  

The consultant’s brief was to maximise 
the number of bays wherever possible.  
There is little point in carrying out 
evening surveys if we are providing the 
maximum number of spaces possible 
without creating obstruction or danger.  
Surveys carried out during the hour of 
operation of the scheme in 
Sandymount Avenue indicate that the 
existing arrangement is adequate.  
Additionally, the consultation has not 
shown that there is a need for more 
parking spaces in Sandymount 
Avenue.   Therefore, there are no plans 
to alter the section in the existing zone. 
Part of the objective is to improve 
access and local amenity by better 
management of parking.  The layout in 
the proposed extension creates a 
chicane effect which has road safety 
benefits.  As the road is about 6 metres 
wide with parking creating single file 
traffic, safety would not be 
compromised.  The existing scheme 
operates for one hour a day, Monday to 
Friday and the proposed zone, if 
agreed, would operate similarly.  It 

10769



Letter 
containing 4 
signatures
representing 
all 4 
properties in 

No proper explanation as 
to how the “cost v 
benefit” has been 
provided.  A “poor quality 
& ill-conceived scheme 
should surely not be 
progressed solely on the 
basis of a local majority, 
particularly if it conflicts 
with professional advice 
and does not constitute 
“Best Value”.” 

“Yellow lines or 
controlled time zones, 
would be likely to almost 
make it impossible to 
park outside our own 
homes”.  We confirm “our 
objections to your 

must be remembered that outside zone 
times parking is not controlled and as a 
result parking is not restricted to the 
marked spaces.   Additional spaces in 
the existing and proposed sections 
would create access difficulties for the 
emergency services. 

Parking schemes are demand led.  
They are introduced only in areas 
where there have been requested and 
where consultation shows there is 
majority support.   The ability of 
residents to park near their homes 
where there is extraneous parking 
demand is obviously a benefit to those 
residents.  The aim of the Council is to 
be responsive to the needs of the local 
community.  Draft proposals were 
formulated for consultation in liaison 
with local key stakeholders because 
parts of the local community lobbied 
hard for review of the scheme.  The 
proposals were modified in certain 
areas in response to the feedback and 
those areas where consultation showed 
that it is generally not wanted were 
dropped.  Event Days proposals would 
have to be consulted upon separately 
for clarity and in light of evidence that 
they are necessary in a shape and form 
that it is justified.   The benefits of the 
scheme are improved residential 
amenity, improved vitality, improved 
safety and improved access.  

It is therefore recommended that the 
objection be set aside. 

Laurimel Close is at the bottom of 
September Way and it is too narrow to 
accommodate residents’ parking 
spaces.  There are only 4 properties in 
this road.   As the road is narrow it is 
unlikely that displaced parking could 
affect Laurimel Close.   In view of this 

10870



Laurimel
Close

Total of 6  
letters from 
residents of 
Court Drive 
and a further 
objector 

proposals for controlled 
parking in Laurimel 
Close”.

One corner property is in 
favour of the proposed 
double yellow line waiting 
restrictions at the junction 
of Snaresbrook 
Drive/Court Drive/The 
Spinney.  A second is 
opposed.  Another corner 
property resident has 
made an objection by 
telephone explaining that 
she is unable to write.   
The remaining four 
letters contain objection 
to residents’ parking 
scheme in Court Drive. 

and the unanimous support for the 
request it is recommended that the 
objection be upheld and Laurimel 
Close be excluded from the 
proposed extension of the CPZ. 

Court Drive was excluded from the 
extension of the zone as the majority of 
respondents  to the September 2004 
consultation opposed it.  However, in 
order to improve access double yellow 
line waiting restrictions were proposed 
at the Snaresbrook junction to improve 
access.  The objectors maintain that 
obstructive parking is not a problem.  
Further investigation has shown this to 
be the case.   The objection to a CPZ 
appears to be a misunderstanding 
arising from the street notices about the 
proposed double yellow line waiting 
restrictions in Court Drive and possibly 
CPZ proposal notices in Snaresbrook 
Drive.  However, The Highway Code 
indicates that vehicles should not park 
within 10 metres of a junction.   It is 
normal practice in controlled parking 
zones to cover the junctions of the 
roads within the zones and at 
entrances to them with zone time 
yellow line waiting restrictions. It is 
therefore recommended that the 
double yellow line objections be 
upheld and the proposals be 
dropped and zone time yellow line 
waiting restrictions be provided at 
the Snaresbrook Drive entrance 
only, leaving the entrance to The 
Spinney without restrictions in 
accordance with the details shown 
at Appendix D.

10971



Summary of re-consultation responses not in favour of scheme and 
officers response 

 Source Summary of 
Objections/Comments 

Officers Response 

1 Laburnam 
Court 
6 responses 
not in favour  

Proposals do not provide 
enough parking spaces. 

proposed parking spaces have been 
maximised. One of the scheme’s 
objectives is to improve access and 
local amenity by better management of 
parking.  Only those areas which cause 
a safety hazard or obstruction will be 
lost. However, the scheme operates for 
one hour a day, Monday to Friday, 
therefore, its impact is minimised. 

2  No current parking 
problems. 

Responses from this road indicate that 
commuter parking is a problem.   

3  Penalised for parking 
outside my own home. 

Legislation requires CPZ schemes to 
be self financing.  This means that it is 
not possible to enforce the CPZ without 
making a charge for a resident permit.  
The charge will need to cover the 
scheme’s administration and 
enforcement costs.  Most properties 
have adequate off-street parking.  As 
the residents benefit from residents’ 
parking schemes it would not be 
unreasonable for them to pay towards 
their costs.  The cost of visitor permits 
is set at a level to minimise abuse.   

4  Would agree to 
proposals if there was an 
additional hour of control 
in the morning. 

The public consultation carried out in 
September 2004 showed that the 
majority of respondents within the 
existing scheme were in favour of 
retaining the existing hours of operation 
of the zone.  It would be confusing for 
drivers if there are different time zones 
for individual streets.    

5  Request that waiting 
restrictions in a section of 
Dennis Lane be changed 
to allow parking after 

The Dennis Lane restrictions were 
introduced to deal with hazardous 
parking.  It would not be conducive to 
road safety to allow such parking after 

11072



6.30pm. 6.30 pm. 

It is recommended that the 
objections be set aside for the above 
reasons. 

6 Marsh Lane
3 responses 
not in favour  

Inconvenience to visitors. Residents’ parking schemes do have 
some disadvantages, such as having to 
purchase residents and visitors 
permits.  However, deterring 
extraneous parking would help 
residents and their visitors find parking 
spaces near their homes. 

7  Penalised for parking out 
side my own home. 

See 3 above. 

8  Proposals do not provide 
enough parking spaces. 

See 1 above. 

It is recommended that the 
objections be set aside for the above 
reasons. 

9 Merryfield 
Gardens
4 responses 
not in favour  

Proposals would not 
bring any benefits. 

A petition and deputation by residents 
representatives was received by the 
Council’s Traffic and Road Safety 
Advisory Panel in March 2005   
indicating that commuter parking in 
Merryfield Gardens is an increasing 
problem.  The scheme would deter 
commuter parking which makes it 
easier for residents to find parking 
spaces near their homes.   

11  Do not wish to have 
parking attendants 
patrolling Merryfield 
Gardens. 

Parking attendants are necessary to 
patrol the streets in order to enforce the  
parking regulations.  See also 9 above. 

12  No current parking 
problems. 

Responses from this road indicate that 
commuter parking is a problem.   

13  Parking permits are too 
expensive. 

See 3 above 

11173



14  Request that CPZ is not 
extended beyond the 
service road. 

The proposal was drawn up in 
accordance with the wishes of the 
petitioners and verified by consultation 
which shows majority support amongst 
the respondents to include the whole of 
Merryfield Gardens. 

15  Do not want parking 
restrictions in Merryfield 
Gardens. 

See 9 and 14 above. 

It is recommended that the 
objections be set aside for the above 
reasons. 

16 Snaresbrook 
Drive
7 responses 
not in favour  

Proposals would create 
parking problems for 
visitors. 

See 6 above. 

17  Proposals have no 
provision for the 
disabled. 

Blue badge holders may park in 
residents’ parking spaces free without a 
permit, provided their blue badge is 
displayed. As commuter parking is 
deterred, parking spaces would be 
much easier to find and the disabled 
residents would be able to find spaces 
near their homes. 

18  Proposals would create 
problems for workmen. 

Workmen have the option of obtaining  
a parking dispensation at a cost of 
£10.50 per two weeks, per vehicle.  
The scheme here operates from 3 pm 
to 4 pm, Monday to Friday.  Outside 
these times parking is permitted in 
residents’ parking spaces and on the 
yellow lines provided the parking does 
not create danger or obstruction.   
Alternatively visitor permits could be 
used. 

19  Position of parking bays 
would make it difficult for 
large vehicles to reverse. 

The purpose of the scheme is to control 
parking.  The  proposed location of 
parking spaces are such that access is 
maintained. 

20  Not necessary to extend 
scheme for occasional 

The scheme proposals are designed to 
deal with the current daily parking 

11274



Wembley events. problems.  The impact of Wembley 
stadium (Event Days) on residents’ 
parking will be considered as a 
separate issue.  An Event Days 
scheme will require a separate 
consultation.    

The September 2004 consultation 
showed support for a residents’ parking 
scheme in Snaresbrook Drive.  The 
recent re-consultation sought views on 
the preferred days of operation of the 
scheme as this element of the previous 
consultation was inconclusive.  The 
recent consultation has shown  that 
80% of the Snaresbrook Drive 
respondents are in favour of the 
proposed  Monday to Saturday 
scheme. 

21  Commuter parking is not 
a problem. 

Responses from this road indicate that 
commuter parking is a problem.   

22  Proposals do not provide 
enough parking spaces. 

See 1 above. 

23  Parking in Stanmore is a 
problem.  Council should 
invest in providing multi- 
storey car parks at the 
Station and repair multi- 
storey car park. 

It is Government and Council policy to 
reduce reliance on the private car.  
Various initiatives are being pursued by 
the Council to achieve this aim.  Among 
these are, various schemes to improve 
public transport, cycle schemes, Safe 
Routes to School schemes and other 
initiatives aimed at improving 
pedestrian facilities to encourage 
walking.  The Borough’s Controlled 
Parking Zones, mainly around railway 
stations, are designed to discourage 
commuters coming by car to continue 
their journeys to Central London or 
elsewhere.  

The upper floors of the multi-storey car 
park are structurally unsafe and it 
would not be cost effective to embark 
upon repairs. 

11375



24  Scheme proposals would 
put businesses in 
Canons Corner at risk. 

Provision of  “pay and 
display”/residents’ parking in front of 
the shops would not resolve the 
parking problems here.  There are 
competing demands for parking from 
shoppers, businesses, residents and 
visitors.  There is room for only 6 
parking spaces in front of the shops 
and this would not be adequate to meet 
demand.  

The consultation carried out in 
September 2004 included proposals for 
shared use “pay and display”/business 
parking in Canons Corner and shared 
use “pay and 
display”/residents/business parking in 
Court Drive.  The majority of 
respondents from both these roads did 
not support the scheme.  Only one 
trader responded to the consultation.  
Therefore, these roads together with 
The Spinney were dropped from the 
proposed extension.   As the Court 
Drive respondents are against parking 
controls, it would not be possible to 
impose a scheme as suggested. 

London  Road, The Spinney and Court 
Drive will not be included in the 
scheme.  Given  the zone will be some 
distance from the parade of shops and 
that it operates for two hours per day, 
Monday to Saturday,  the impact would 
be minimal.   Residents of Canons 
Corner and shoppers would be able to 
continue to park (as they do now) in 
London Road, Court Drive and The 
Spinney, all of which would be outside 
the proposed CPZ. 

25  Yellow lines in front of 
drives would not allow 
me to park across my 

The yellow lines are operational only 
during the controlled hours.  Parking 
spaces are not provided across 

11476



driveway. driveways since any vehicle displaying 
a parking permit for this zone would be 
able to legally park across any such 
driveway obstructing access to it.   For 
this reason residents’ parking spaces 
are not proposed across driveways. 

26  Without incorporating 
The Spinney and Court 
Drive in scheme the 
problem will shift to these 
roads

The majority of respondents from The 
Spinney and Court Drive were not in 
favour for these roads to be included in 
the scheme.  Controlled Parking Zones 
are only considered in roads/areas 
where there is majority support. 

27  Scheme is piecemeal 
either all roads in the 
area should be included 
or none. 

Proposal includes the roads where the 
majority of respondents are supportive. 
It would not be plausible to impose a 
scheme on those who do not want it. 

It is recommended that the 
objections are set aside for the 
above reasons. 

11577



116

This page is intentionally left blank

78



This appendix consists of an ordnance survey map which is not 
available electronically. 

APPENDIX D

11779



118

This page is intentionally left blank

80



This appendix consists of an ordnance survey map which is not 
available electronically. 

11981



This appendix consists of an ordnance survey map which is not 
available electronically. 

12082



This appendix consists of an ordnance survey map which is not 
available electronically. 

12183



This appendix consists of an ordnance survey map which is not 
available electronically. 

12284



This appendix consists of an ordnance survey map which is not 
available electronically. 

12385



This appendix consists of an ordnance survey map which is not 
available electronically. 

12486



This appendix consists of an ordnance survey map which is not 
available electronically. 

12587



This appendix consists of an ordnance survey map which is not 
available electronically. 

12688



This appendix consists of an ordnance survey map which is not 
available electronically. 

12789



This appendix consists of an ordnance survey map which is not 
available electronically. 

12890



APPENDIX E

List of streets and part streets to be included in extension to Stanmore 
CPZs.

Zone B -  Operational hours 3pm-4pm Monday to Friday:  
Aran Drive,  Coverdale Close, Du Cros Drive Nos. 28 and 31, 
Halsbury Close,  Hewett Close,  Hill Close,  Laburnum Court,
Lemark Close,  Marsh Lane, (west side: Beauchamp Court, 
Ascot Place, Sandown Court, Longchamp Court, Cheltenham 
Court, Cargrey House, Holbein House and Nos 64 to 66 Marsh 
Lane),  East side: Garden Court, Chatsworth Court, Halfacre, 
Burnham Court and Nos. 35 to 39 Marsh Lane),  Merryfield 
Gardens,  Nelson Road,  Rainsford Close,  Sandymount 
Avenue,  September Way, and Stangate Gardens. 

Zone H -  Operational hours 10am-11am and 3pm-4pm Monday to 
Saturday: 
Court Drive Nos. 23 and 24,  Snaresbrook Drive.  

12991



130

This page is intentionally left blank

92



13193



13294



This appendix consists of an ordnance survey map which is not 
available electronically. 

13395



This appendix consists of an ordnance survey map which is not 
available electronically. 

13496



This appendix consists of an ordnance survey map which is not 
available electronically. 

13597



136

This page is intentionally left blank

98



13799



138100



139101



140102



This appendix consists of an ordnance survey map which is not 
available electronically. 

141103



This appendix consists of an ordnance survey map which is not 
available electronically. 

142104



This appendix consists of an ordnance survey map which is not 
available electronically. 

143105



144

This page is intentionally left blank

106



145107



146108



147



148110



149111



150

This page is intentionally left blank

112



This appendix consists of an ordnance survey map which is not 
available electronically. 

151113



This appendix consists of an ordnance survey map which is not 
available electronically. 

152114



This appendix consists of an ordnance survey map which is not 
available electronically. 

153115



154

This page is intentionally left blank

116



155117



156118



Z
o

n
e
 B

 –
 S

u
m

m
a
ry

 o
f 

re
-c

o
n

s
u

lt
a
ti

o
n

 r
e
s
p

o
n

s
e
s
 1

5
 J

u
ly

 2
0
0
5

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

R
o
a
d
 n

a
m

e
 

N
o
 o

f 
p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s

N
o
 o

f 
re

s
p
o
n
s
e
s

%
 r

e
p
ly

 
Q

1
: 

A
re

 y
o
u
 i
n
 f

a
v
o
u
r 

o
f 

 
a
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

’ 
p
a
rk

in
g
 s

c
h
e
m

e
 b

e
in

g
 

in
tr

o
d
u
c
e
d
 i
n
 y

o
u
r 

ro
a
d
?
 

 

  
  

  
  

Y
e

s
 

N
o

 
D

o
n

't
 k

n
o

w
 

 

C
h
a
rl
b
u
ry

 A
v
e
n
u
e
 (

p
a
rt

) 
8
 

2
 

2
5
%

1
 

1
 

0
 

 

  
  

 
  

5
0
%

 
5
0
%

 
  

 

C
ra

ig
w

e
il 

C
lo

s
e
 (

p
a
rt

) 
1
9
 

6
 

3
2
%

1
 

5
 

0
 

 

  
  

 
  

1
7
%

 
8
3
%

 
  

 

E
a
to

n
 C

lo
s
e
 

4
7
 

2
3
 

4
9
%

7
 

1
6
 

0
 

 

  
  

 
  

3
0
%

 
7
0
%

 
  

 

E
liz

a
b
e
th

 G
a
rd

e
n
s
 

9
6
 

1
1
 

1
2
%

3
 

8
 

0
 

 

  
  

 
  

2
7
%

 
7
3
%

 
  

 

L
a
b
u
rn

u
m

 C
o
u
rt

 
3
8
 

1
9
 

5
0
%

1
3
 

5
 

1
 

 

  
  

 
  

6
8
%

 
2
6
%

 
6

%
  

 

M
a
lc

o
lm

 C
o
u
rt

 
2
4
 

1
1
 

4
6
%

2
 

8
 

1
 

 

  
  

 
  

1
8
%

 
7
3
%

 
9

%
  

 

M
a
rs

h
 L

a
n
e
 (

p
a
rt

) 
1
3
 

9
 

6
9
%

6
 

3
 

0
 

 

  
  

 
  

6
7
%

 
3
3
%

 
  

 

M
e
rr

y
fi
e
ld

 G
a
rd

e
n
s
 

4
4
 

3
2
 

7
3
%

2
6
 

6
 

0
 

 

  
  

 
  

8
1
%

 
1
9
%

 
  

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

    APPENDIX G

157119



Z
o

n
e
 H

 -
 S

u
m

m
a
ry

 o
f 

re
-c

o
n

s
u

lt
a
ti

o
n

 r
e
s
p

o
n

s
e
s
 2

3
 A

u
g

u
s
t 

2
0
0
5

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

R
o
a
d
 n

a
m

e
 

N
o
 o

f 
p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s

N
o
 o

f 
re

s
p
o
n
s
e
s

%
 r

e
p
ly

 

Q
1
: 

A
re

 y
o
u
 i
n
 f

a
v
o
u
r 

o
f 

a
 

re
s
id

e
n
ts

’ 
p
a
rk

in
g
 s

c
h
e
m

e
 

b
e
in

g
 i
n
tr

o
d
u
c
e
d
 i
n
 y

o
u
r 

ro
a
d
?

Q
2

: 
If

 M
a

jo
ri
ty

 o
f 

y
o

u
r 

s
tr

e
e

t 
v
o

te
 i
n

 
fa

v
o

u
r 

o
f 

b
e
in

g
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 C

P
Z

, 
w

h
ic

h
 o

f 
th

e
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 d

a
y
s
 w

o
u
ld

 y
o
u
 

p
re

fe
r?

 
  

 
  

Y
e

s
 

N
o

 
D

o
n
't

k
n

o
w

 
M

o
n

-S
a

t
M

o
n

-F
ri

O
th

e
r 

D
o
n
't

k
n
o
w

L
o
n
d
o
n
 R

o
a
d
 

3
6
 

1
7
 

4
7
%

 
8
 

9
 

0
 

8
 

7
 

1
  

1
 

  
  

 
  

4
7
%

 
5
3
%

 
4

7
%

4
1
%

 
6
%

  
6
%

 

S
n
a
re

s
b
ro

o
k
 D

ri
v
e
 

5
0
 

3
5
 

7
0
%

 
2
8
 

7
 

0
 

2
2
 

9
 

3
 

1
 

  
  

8
0
%

 
2
0
%

 
6
3
%

 
2
6
%

 
9
%

 
3
%

  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

158120



159121



160

This page is intentionally left blank

122



161123



162124



This appendix consists of an ordnance survey map which is not 
available electronically. 

163125



164

This page is intentionally left blank

126



This appendix consists of an ordnance survey map which is not 
available electronically. 

165127



166

This page is intentionally left blank

128



167129



168130



169131



170

This page is intentionally left blank

132



A
n

a
ly

s
is

 o
f 

re
s
u

lt
s
 o

f 
H

o
w

b
e
rr

y
 R

o
a
d

 a
n

d
 H

o
w

b
e
rr

y
 C

lo
s
e
 c

o
n

s
u

lt
a
ti

o
n

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

R
o
a
d
 N

a
m

e
 

N
o
 o

f 
p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s

N
o
 o

f 
re

s
p
o
n
s
e
s

%
R

e
p
ly

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 1

: 
A

re
 y

o
u
 i
n
 f

a
v
o
u
r 

o
f 

p
a
rk

in
g
 c

o
n
tr

o
ls

 b
e
in

g
 

in
tr

o
d
u
c
e
d
 i
n
 y

o
u
r 

ro
a
d
?

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 2

: 
 I

f 
th

e
 m

a
jo

ri
ty

 v
o
te

 f
o
r 

p
a
rk

in
g
 c

o
n
tr

o
ls

, 
w

h
ic

h
 

o
p
ti
o
n
 w

o
u
ld

 y
o
u
 p

re
fe

r:
 

  
  

 
  

Y
e
s
 

N
o
 

B
la

n
k
 

O
p
ti
o
n
 A

A
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

' 
p
a
rk

in
g

s
c
h
e
m

e
o
p
e
ra

ti
n
g

2
p
m

-3
p
m

M
o
n
-F

ri

O
p
ti
o
n
 B

 
A

 y
e
llo

w
 l
in

e
 

w
a
it
in

g
 

re
s
tr

ic
ti
o
n
s

o
p
e
ra

ti
n
g

2
p
m

-3
p
m

M
o
n
-F

ri

D
o
n
't

k
n
o
w

B
la

n
k

H
o
w

b
e
rr

y
 C

lo
s
e
 

3
3
 

2
0
 

6
1
%

 
1
5
 

5
 

0
 

7
 

1
0
 

2
 

1
 

  
  

 
  

7
5

%
 

2
5

%
 

  
3

5
%

 
5

0
%

 
1

0
%

 
5

%
 

H
o
w

b
e
rr

y
 R

o
a
d
 

3
2
 

1
7
 

5
3
%

 
1
2
 

4
 

1
 

6
 

9
 

1
 

1
 

  
  

 
  

7
1

%
 

2
4

%
 

6
%

 
3

5
%

 
5

3
%

 
6

%
 

6
%

 

T
o
ta

ls
 

6
5
 

3
7
 

5
7
%

 
2
7
 

9
 

1
 

1
3
 

1
9
 

3
 

2
 

  
  

  
  

7
3

%
 

2
4

%
 

3
%

 
3

5
%

 
5

1
%

 
8

%
 

5
%

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

APPENDIX  I

171133



172

This page is intentionally left blank

134



This appendix consists of an ordnance survey map which is not 
available electronically. 

APPENDIX J

173135



174

This page is intentionally left blank

136



CABINET  VOL. 5  CTRSAP 59  

TRAFFIC AND ROAD SAFETY ADVISORY PANEL  21 SEPTEMBER 2005 

Chair: * Councillor Miles 
   
Councillors: * Arnold 

* Branch 
* Burchell 
* Choudhury 
* Harriss 

* Ismail 
* Kara 
* John Nickolay 
* Anne Whitehead 

   
Advisers:   Mrs R Carratt 

* Mr E Diamond 
* Mr J Gloor 
* Mr A Wood 

* Denotes Member present 

[Note:  Councillor Vina Mithani also attended this meeting to speak on the item 
indicated at Minute 132 below]. 

PART I - RECOMMENDATIONS PART I - RECOMMENDATIONS 

Kenton Park Road Experimental Road Closure Update

Your Panel received a report of the Director of Area Services, Urban Living, which 
provided an update on the experimental road closure at Kenton Park Road and 
detailed an investigation to locally widen Kenton Road in order to create a dedicated 
right-turn lane into Kenton Lane.  

Members were asked to consider extending the experimental road closure for six 
months, to allow Member-level discussions between Brent and Harrow Councils 
concerning the proposed road widening. A letter received from Brent Council, 
supporting the road widening but providing no firm offer of funding, was circulated to 
Members. Members were informed that the road closure could only be extended for a 
further six months, as the road could not be closed legally for more than eighteen 
months in total. Members discussed the role of Councillor Bob Blackman, London 
Assembly Member for Brent and Harrow, in the negotiations with Transport for London 
(TfL).

An advisor to the Panel referred to the repeated collapse of the road at the junction, 
and it was suggested that a brook might run beneath the road. Officers assured the 
Panel that any widening of the road would be accompanied by appropriate 
strengthening measures.  

Two ward councillors for Kenton West spoke on behalf of the residents of Kenton, 
requesting a solution that would accommodate all residents.  

Resolved to RECOMMEND:  (To the Portfolio Holder for Environment and Transport) 

That (1)  the experimental closure in Kenton Park Road including the associated 
experimental double yellow line waiting restrictions be extended for a further six 
months to eighteen months; 

(2)  further discussions be undertaken with Brent Council, including at Member level, 
regarding sharing the cost of the proposed scheme to widen Kenton Road and 
reinstate the right turn into Kenton Lane; 

(3)  local residents in the wider area shown at Appendix C to the report be informed of 
the extension of the experimental period and ongoing work to investigate reinstating 
the right turn into Kenton Lane, and that any further community representations be 
considered along with other representations at the scheme review in November 2005. 

[REASON:  To seek approval to extend the experimental period to allow more time for 
further community representations to be considered.] 

137



CTRSAP 60  VOL. 5 CABINET

Proposed Extension of Stanmore Controlled Parking Zone - Objections and Re-
Consultation Results including Howberry Road and Howberry Close

Your Panel received a report of the Director of Area Services, Urban Living, which 
detailed the responses received from the re-consultation on the extension of the 
Stanmore CPZ and objections received to the advertised traffic orders.  

The meeting was advised of some corrections to the report: specifically that 9, not 7, 
letters of objection to the advertised traffic orders had been received, all of which had 
been addressed in the officers’ report; and that extracts from the three petitions 
covered in the report had not been included in Appendix B, but were accordingly 
circulated to Members. 

Officers informed the Panel that, with the exception of the consultation in the Howberry 
Road area, the consultations had produced clear-cut conclusions reflected in the 
officers’ recommendations. It was reported that in the Howberry Road area, 51% of 
respondents had been in favour of yellow line waiting restrictions to operate between 
2pm and 3pm Monday to Friday. On balance, officers’ felt that a residents’ parking 
scheme would better serve the needs of the residents.  

Members discussed the officers’ statement that over a third of the respondents that 
supported the proposal to implement a residents’ parking scheme may need on-street 
parking. Whilst some Members felt that the yellow line scheme, which had the support 
of the local residents’ association, would best serve the majority of residents, others 
cited the needs of a minority of residents who would be seriously disadvantaged by a 
yellow-line scheme.  

An advisor to the Panel emphasised the need for business permits to be incorporated 
into the scheme to support workers in Stanmore, and officers advised the Panel that 
they already were.  

Particular reference was made to the petitions received from residents and businesses 
in Canons Corner, and the petition received from residents in the Green Lane area. 
Officers were requested to investigate the issue of congestion in Green Lane. Whilst 
Members felt that a ‘Pay and Display’ and residents’ parking area could be applied to 
the six parking bays outside the parade of shops at Canon’s Corner, officers advised 
that the competing demands of residents and businesses on a limited number of 
spaces made the option untenable. Officers were requested to investigate further 
options to alleviate parking problems in this area.    

Resolved to RECOMMEND:  (To the Portfolio Holder for Environment and Transport) 

That (1)  the objections to the traffic orders for alterations and extension of the 
Stanmore Controlled Parking Zones (Zone B and Zone H) be set aside unless 
otherwise indicated for reasons given at Appendix C to the report; 

(2)  Charlbury Avenue (part), Craigwell Close (part), Eaton Close, Elizabeth Gardens, 
Malcolm Court, Laurimel Close and London Road (part) be excluded from the scheme; 

(3)  officers be authorised to implement the extension to Stanmore CPZ  Zone B and 
Zone H as shown at Appendix D to the report and detailed at Appendix E under the 
Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984; 

(4)  officers be authorised to take all necessary steps under the Road Traffic 
Regulation Act 1984 to advertise the traffic orders, the details of which be delegated to 
officers, and implement a Controlled Parking Zone incorporating a residents’ parking 
scheme in Howberry Road between Cloyster Wood and Wychwood Avenue including 
Howberry Close, as shown at Appendix J to the report, to operate Monday to Friday 
2pm – 3pm subject to consideration of objections (if any), the statement of reasons to 
be ‘to control parking an to improve residential amenity’; 

(5)  officers be authorised to investigate congestion and road safety problems at the 
northern end of Green Lane;  

(6)  officers be authorised to investigate further the parking problems outside the shops 
on Canon’s Corner, and report back to the Panel; 

(7)  the objectors and head petitioners be informed accordingly.  

138



CABINET  VOL. 5  CTRSAP 61  

[REASON:  To gain agreement for implementation of parking controls to address the 
Council’s stated priority of enhancing the environment and encourage more sustainable 
transport activity]. 

PART II - MINUTES 

122. Attendance by Reserve Members:

RESOLVED:  To note that there were no Reserve Members in attendance at this 
meeting.

123. Declarations of Interest:

RESOLVED:  To note that there were no declarations of personal or prejudicial 
interests made by Members of the Panel arising from the business transacted at this 
meeting.

124. Arrangement of Agenda:   

RESOLVED:  That (1) in accordance with the Local Government (Access to 
Information) Act 1985, the following agenda items be admitted under any other 
business by virtue of the special circumstances and grounds for urgency detailed 
below:- 

Agenda item Special Circumstances/Grounds for Urgency

Reference from the Wealdstone 
Regeneration Advisory Panel 
Meeting on 7 September 2005 

Petts Hill: Regular Update 

Accident Statistics 

Traffic Calming Measures in 
Kings Road and Surrounding 
Area

This report was not available at the time the 
agenda was printed and circulated.  Members 
agreed to receive this reference in conjunction 
with Agenda Item 8a). 

To enable Members to make timely and informed 
decisions on the replacement of the Petts Hill 
bridge. 

To provide Members with a more detailed 
analysis of accident sites in the borough, to 
inform future decisions of the Panel. 

To provide Members with details of the current 
consultation, to enable the Panel to draw 
conclusions and make recommendations on a 
potentially contentious issue for residents.  

(2) all items be considered with the press and public present. 

125. Minutes:
A Member wished it to be noted that the Conservative Party had intended the final 
paragraph of Minute 120 to be incorporated as a resolution to the minute, not for it to 
be included in the main body of the minute text.  

RESOLVED:  That the minutes of the meeting held on 21 June 2005, having been 
circulated, be taken as read and signed as a correct record. 

126. Public Questions:

RESOLVED:  To note that no public questions were received at this meeting under the 
provisions of Advisory Panel and Consultative Forum Procedure Rule 15 (Part 4E of 
the Constitution). 

127. Petitions:

RESOLVED:  To note the receipt of the following petition which was referred to the 
relevant officer for consideration: 

• Petition requesting that the right-turn from Kenton Road into Kenton Lane be 
restored and that additional pedestrian crossing facilities be installed at the same 
junction
Presented by Councillor Vina Mithani and signed by 818 Kenton residents.  

139



CTRSAP 62  VOL. 5 CABINET

128. Deputations:

RESOLVED:  To note that no deputations were received at this meeting under the 
provisions of Advisory Panel and Consultative Forum Procedure Rule 14 (Part 4E of 
the Constitution). 

129. Pedestrian crossing improvements and removal of turning restrictions at the 
Headstone Drive/Cecil Road/Ellen Webb Drive junction:
Your Panel received a report of the Director of Area Services, Urban Living, which 
provided a progress update on an investigation into the removal of turning restrictions 
and the provision of pedestrian crossing facilities at the Headstone Drive/Cecil 
Road/Ellen Webb Drive junction. Your Panel also considered a reference from the 
Wealdstone Regeneration Advisory Panel meeting on 7 September 2005, proposing 
that a safety audit be carried out to ascertain the feasibility of removing the right turn 
restriction before other schemes for controlling the traffic were considered, and noting 
the Panel’s lack of support for the option proposed in the officer report.    

Officers informed the Panel that traffic signal and roundabout solutions had been 
investigated, although neither solution fully addressed all the issues associated with the 
junction. A proposal was described which manipulated the traffic conditions on the 
junction approaches to favour the most difficult/important approaches over the least 
difficult/important. Crucially, non-local traffic would be re-directed from Cecil Road back 
to the main road network using a manipulation of traffic signals that would significantly 
reduce the green time on Cecil Road, thus causing a deliberate disadvantage to 
vehicles using Cecil Road to avoid congestion on the main roads. The green time from 
Cecil Road could then be redistributed to other junction approaches to reduce queuing. 
Sufficient green time would need to be retained to accommodate local users. A detailed 
origin and destination survey would therefore be required to establish the relative 
volumes of local and non-local traffic using Cecil Road to determine if the green time 
can be reduced far enough to give a workable scheme. 

In the discussion that followed, Members of the Panel expressed their concern over 
manipulating the signals on Cecil Road and the subsequent effects on local residents. 
It was suggested that increasing the congestion would increase ‘rat-running’ through 
the smaller roads, and that the poor condition of the main roads forced traffic onto 
smaller roads like Cecil Road.  

An advisor to the Panel suggested using sensors to control the phasing of the lights at 
Cecil Road and Headstone Drive. An officer agreed to investigate this suggestion. It 
was further suggested that any proposals ought to consider both the short term and 
long term developments at the junction. 

A Member of the Panel suggested that the safety audit proposed by Wealdstone 
Regeneration Advisory Panel be conducted in parallel with the proposed origin and 
destination survey.  

RESOLVED:  That (1)  officers be authorised to conduct an origin and destination 
survey to establish the volume of non-local traffic using Cecil Road and to develop a 
scheme to introduce traffic signals, with pedestrian crossing facilities, at the Ellen 
Webb Drive/Headstone Drive/Cecil Road junction that will actively discourage such 
traffic from using Cecil Road; 

(2)  officers be authorised to simultaneously carry out a safety audit to ascertain the 
feasibility of removing the right turn restriction before other schemes for controlling the 
traffic be considered; 

(3)  officers be authorised, subject to the survey showing that a workable solution is 
achievable, to: 

• conduct a public consultation exercise to demonstrate that there is local support for 
the scheme; 

• seek approval from Transport for London (TfL); 
• prepare notification on the relocation of the Toucan crossing on Ellen Webb Drive 

(East) exit and make any modifications to waiting and loading restrictions that are 
necessary; 

(4)  subject to the foregoing issues being considered further by the Portfolio Holder for 
Environment and Transport, implement the scheme.  

140



CABINET  VOL. 5  CTRSAP 63  

130. Harrow View/Headstone Drive/Headstone Gardens Pedestrian Facilities at 
Signals:
The Panel received a report of the Director of Area Services, Urban Living, which 
detailed the findings of an investigation into the provision of controlled pedestrian 
crossing facilities at the Harrow View/Headstone Drive/Headstone Gardens junction. 
Officers advised Members that TfL, who had agreed funding to improve the junction by 
March 2006, had conducted the investigation.  

In the discussion that followed, Members sought clarification on the proposed solution. 
Officers confirmed that two-stage crossing facilities would be provided on the 
Headstone Drive and Headstone Gardens approaches with single-stage crossings on 
the other approaches. The pedestrian facilities had been arranged to minimise the loss 
of green time to vehicles thereby minimising loss of capacity on the approaches, 
although overall there would be a small increase in delay for traffic using this junction. 
To achieve this layout required the introduction of a right turn ban from Headstone 
Gardens to Harrow View (south) which would displace a small amount of traffic from 
the junction. Officers confirmed that the signals would be pedestrian activated. In 
addition to pedestrian facilities the scheme would also introduce a small amount of 
shopper parking. 

A Member of the Panel who was also the ward councillor for Headstone South offered 
her support for the proposals, which she described as offering a balance between the 
needs of motorists and pedestrians. However, a Member expressed concern that 
delaying the traffic and introducing a right turn ban would increase traffic volume on 
surrounding roads. An officer advised that ‘Before and After’ monitoring of traffic flow 
would be carried out to determine if there was any notable traffic displacement as a 
result of the right turn ban. 

Although Members of the Panel emphasised that there was no easy solution to the 
problems at this junction, it was agreed to support the officer’s recommendation subject 
to clear public support being demonstrated via consultation.   

RESOLVED: That (1)  officers be authorised to carry out a public consultation exercise 
to measure the level of support for the introduction of pedestrian crossing facilities and 
shopper parking at the Headstone Drive/Harrow View/Headstone Gardens junction in a 
proposal that will ban right turns from Headstone Gardens into Harrow View and that 
will lead to a limited increase in queuing at the junction; 

(2)  officers be authorised, subject to clear public support being demonstrated, to: 

• prepare traffic orders to introduce a right turn ban from Headstone Gardens; 
• introduce pay and display parking; and 
• modify waiting and loading restrictions to accommodate changes to the bus stop; 

and, subject to these issues being considered further by the Portfolio Holder for 
Environment and Transport, implement the scheme.  

131. Kenton Park Road Experimental Road Closure Update:
See Recommendation 1. 

132. Proposed Extension of Stanmore Controlled Parking Zone - Objections and Re-
Consultation Results including Howberry Road and Howberry Close:
See Recommendation 2. 

133. Any Other Business:
(i) Petts Hill Bridge

A Member of the Panel requested regular updates and reports on the Petts Hill 
Bridge improvement scheme. Although it was argued that the reports should 
only be provided when required, instead of creating a standing agenda item, it 
was: 

RESOLVED: That officers update the Panel when there are new 
developments to the Petts Hill Bridge proposals, and report any developments 
to the next meeting. 

(ii) Accident statistics
 Officers requested more information on what format the statistics should take. 

RESOLVED: That Nominated Members discuss with officers outside the 
formal Panel meetings to agree format of regular information on accident 
statistics. 

141



CTRSAP 64  VOL. 5 CABINET

(iii) Traffic calming measures in Kings Road and the surrounding area
A Member of the Panel requested that the results from the consultation on 
traffic calming measures in Kings Road be brought to the Panel, to enable 
them to make recommendations. Members were informed that any issues that 
were contentious were presented to the Traffic and Road Safety Advisory 
Panel for their decision, and that if this issue was contentious it would be 
presented at a future meeting. 

RESOLVED: That the above be noted.   

(Note:  The meeting having commenced at 7.30 pm, closed at 9.30 pm) 

(Signed) COUNCILLOR JERRY MILES 
Chair 

142


